
-1-

CITY OF ONTARIO 
DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 

AGENDA 

February 5, 2018

 All documents for public review are on file in the Planning Department
located in City Hall at 303 East “B” St., Ontario, CA  91764.

MEETING WILL BE HELD AT 1:30 PM IN ONTARIO CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
LOCATED AT 303 East “B” St. 

Scott Ochoa, City Manager 
Hassan Haghani, Development Director 
John P. Andrews, Economic Development Director 
Kevin Shear, Building Official 
Scott Murphy, Assistant Development Director (Planning) 
Louis Abi-Younes, City Engineer 
Chief Brad Kaylor, Police Department 
Fire Marshal Paul Ehrman, Fire Department 
Scott Burton, Utilities General Manager 
Brent Schultz, Housing and Municipal Services Director 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Citizens wishing to address the Development Advisory Board on any matter that is not on the 
agenda may do so at this time.  Please state your name and address clearly for the record and 
limit your remarks to five minutes. 

Please note that while the Development Advisory Board values your comments, the members 
cannot respond nor take action until such time as the matter may appear on the forthcoming 
agenda. 



 
 

-2- 

 
AGENDA ITEMS 
 
For each of the items listed below the public will be provided an opportunity to speak.  After a staff 
report is provided, the chairperson will open the public hearing.  At that time the applicant will be 
allowed five (5) minutes to make a presentation on the case.  Members of the public will then be allowed 
five (5) minutes each to speak.  The Development Advisory Board may ask the speakers questions 
relative to the case and the testimony provided.  The question period will not count against your time 
limit.  After all persons have spoken, the applicant will be allowed three minutes to summarize or rebut 
any public testimony.  The chairperson will then close the public hearing portion of the hearing and 
deliberate the matter. 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
 
A. MINUTES APPROVAL 
 

Development Advisory Board Minutes of January 17, 2018, approved as written. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS  

 
B.         ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR  

FILE NO. PDEV17-049: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-049) to construct a 314 
square-foot addition and façade improvements to an existing 2,446 square-foot commercial 
building (ARCO service station/convenience store), on 0.45 acres of land located at 1245 
E. Fourth Street, within the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) zoning district. The project 
is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) pursuant to Section 15301 (Class 1, Existing Facilities) of the CEQA Guidelines. 
The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International 
Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the 
Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 1047-462-
13) submitted by Joseph Karaki / Karaki Western States.   

 
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – Exempt:  CEQA Guidelines Section §15301 
       

2. File No. PDEV17-049 (Development Plan) 
 

Motion to Approve / Deny  
 
 
If you wish to appeal a decision of the Development Advisory Board, you must do so within ten 
(10) days of the Development Advisory Board action. Please contact the Planning Department 
for information regarding the appeal process. 
 
 
 





CITY OF ONTARIO 

Development Advisory Board 

Minutes 

January 17, 2018

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Rudy Zeledon Acting Chairman, Planning Department  
Pedro Rico, Building Department  
Charity Hernandez, Economic Development Agency  
Paul Ehrman, Fire Department  
Joe De Sousa, Housing and Municipal Services Agency 
Ahmed Aly, Municipal Utilities Company  
Bryan Lirley, Engineering Department 
Doug Sorel, Police Department  

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 

Khoi Do, Chairman, Engineering Department 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT 

Jeanie Aguilo, Planning Department 
John Andrews, Economic Development 
Elly Antuna, Planning Department 
Maureen Duran, Planning Department 
Naiim Khoury, Planning Department 
Chuck Mercier, Planning Department 
Henry Noh, Planning Department 
Miguel Sotomayor, Engineering Department 
Dean Williams, Engineering Department 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

No one responded from the audience. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Motion to approve the minutes of the December 18, 2017, meeting
of the Development Advisory Board was made by Mr. DeSousa; seconded by Mr. Sorel; and
approved unanimously by those present (8-0).

Item A - 1 of 3



Development Advisory Board 
Minutes – January 17, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 
 
B. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. 

PDEV17-036: A Development Plan to construct a new automobile sales lot with a 36,818-square foot 
sales and service facility (Ontario Infiniti) on 3.9 acres of land generally located at the southwest corner 
of Inland Empire Boulevard and QVC Way, within the Urban Commercial land use district of the 
Meredith International Centre Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were previously 
reviewed in conjunction with File Nos. PGPA13-005 and PSPA14-003, for which the Meredith 
International Centre Specific Plan Amendment Environmental Impact Report (SCH No. 2014051020) 
was certified by the City Council on April 7, 2015. This Application introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the 
Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP); (APN: 0110-321-71) submitted 
by Cordy Cerami. 

 
Representative Cordy Cerami of Infiniti was present and agreed to the conditions of approval.  
There were no further questions or concerns.  

 
Motion to approve File No. PDEV17-036 subject to conditions was made by Mr. DeSousa; 
seconded by Mr. Rico and approved unanimously by those present (8-0). 
 

C. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP TIME EXTENSION 
REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PMTT14-020: A one-year Time Extension of the expiration date for the 
approval of File No. PMTT14-020, a Tentative Parcel Map (PM 19552) to subdivide a 0.20-acre parcel 
of land into a single parcel for condominium purposes, located on the west side of Euclid Avenue, 
approximately 450 feet north of Elm Street, at 1420 South Euclid Avenue, within the MDR-18 
(Medium Density Residential – 11.1 to 18.0 DU/Acre) and EA (Euclid Avenue) Overlay zoning 
districts. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15315 (Class 15, Minor Land Divisions) of the CEQA 
Guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International 
Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario 
International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). (APN: 1050-051-01); submitted by 
Johnathan Ma. Planning Commission action is required.  

 
There was no representative in attendance. There were no questions or concerns from the the board. 
Mr. Zeledon recommended a motion from the board.  

 
Motion recommending approval of File No. PMTT14-020 subject to conditions to the Planning 
Commission was made by Mr. Sorel; seconded by Ms. Hernandez and approved unanimously by 
those present (8-0). 

Item A - 2 of 3



Item A - 3 of 3



 

 Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
February 5, 2018 

 
DECISION NO.: [insert #] 
 
FILE NO.: PDEV17-049 
 
DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-049) to construct a 314 square-foot 
addition and façade improvements to an existing 2,446 square-foot commercial building (ARCO service 
station/convenience store), on 0.45 acres of land located at 1245 E. Fourth Street, within the CN 
(Neighborhood Commercial) zoning district. (APN 1047-462-13); submitted by Joseph Karaki / Karaki 
Western States. 
 
 
 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 
 

JOSEPH KARAKI / KARAKI WESTERN STATES, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed 
an application requesting Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV17-049, as described in the subject 
of this Decision (herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 
 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 0.45 acres of land located at 1245 E. 
Fourth Street, and is depicted in Exhibit A: Aerial Photograph, attached. Existing land uses, General Plan 
and zoning designations, and specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 
 

 Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site: Retail Neighborhood 
Commercial 

CN (Neighborhood 
Commercial) N/A 

North: Retail Neighborhood 
Commercial 

CN (Neighborhood 
Commercial) 

N/A 

South: Park Open Space 
Recreation 

OS-R (Open Space – 
Recreation) 

N/A 

East: Retail 
Neighborhood 
Commercial 

CN (Neighborhood 
Commercial) 

N/A 

West: Retail 
Neighborhood 
Commercial 

CN (Neighborhood 
Commercial) 

N/A 

 
(2) Project Description: Background — On September 22, 2017, Joseph Karaki / Karaki 

Western States (“Applicant”) submitted an application for a Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-049) to 
construct a 314 square-foot addition and façade improvements to an existing 2,446 square-foot commercial 
building, for a total of 2,760 square feet on 0.45 acres of land. The project is subject to Development 
Advisory Board review due to the substantial remodel and conversion/removal of the abandoned service 
bay doors.  

 
Site Design/Building Layout — The project site is developed with an existing ARCO gas station with a 
convenience store and an unused two-bay service garage. The proposed addition to the building will be 
located along the southwest elevation of the existing convenience store that fronts onto Fourth Street (see 
Exhibit B: Site Plan and Exhibit C: Elevations). The project will convert the service garage into useable 

Item B - 1 of 28



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-049 
February 5, 2018 

Page 2 

space for the convenience store, including administrative space and cold storage for new beverage 
refrigerators. The project also features new landscaping throughout the site, a new trash enclosure, and 
façade improvements for the convenience store (see Exhibit C: Elevations). The existing fueling station 
canopies will remain as-is. 

Site Access/Circulation — The subject property has street frontage and vehicular access along Grove 
Avenue and Fourth Street. Access to the site will still be provided by the four existing driveways, and the 
removal of a storage shed will allow for reconfiguration of the site to provide parking and landscaping. The 
project frontage along Grove Avenue and Fourth Street will be improved by repairing sidewalks, installing 
5-foot irrigated parkways and updating the existing landscaping at the southeast corner of the lot.

Parking — In accordance with the Ontario Development Code, the project is required to provide nine 
parking spaces. The applicant is proposing nine parking spaces, not including the parking spaces under 
the gasoline station canopies. 

Architecture — The project proposes a modern architectural design for the convenience store that 
incorporates stone veneer, stucco siding, wood panel siding, metal canopies, aluminum window mullions 
and an enlarged roof overhang located at the main entrance (see Exhibit D: Color and Materials). The 
existing fueling station canopies are complimentary to the proposed convenience store. 

Landscaping — An existing 120 square-foot landscape planter is located at the southeast portion of the 
project site.  The project is proposing 6.5-foot wide landscape planters along the northern and western 
property lines, as well as a landscape planter along southwest convenience store elevation, which will 
soften the project site and provide additional accent trees.  The project is proposing 15.5% landscape 
coverage, which meets the Development Code requirement. 

Part II—RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption (listed in CEQA 
Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the application of that categorical exemption 
is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and act on the subject Application; and 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 

Item B - 2 of 28



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-049 
February 5, 2018 
 
 

Page 3 

and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; 
 

WHEREAS, on February 5, 2018, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the decision-making body for 
the Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the administrative record 
for the Project. Based upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all 
written and oral evidence presented to the DAB, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15301 (Existing Facilities) of the CEQA Guidelines, which consists 
of the operation, repair, maintenance, permitting, leasing, licensing, or minor alteration of existing public or 
private structures, facilities, mechanical equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or no 
expansion of use beyond that existing at the time of the lead agency's determination. 
 

(2) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set 
forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

(3) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment of the DAB. 
 

SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the decision-making body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of 
the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of 
the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 
 

SECTION 3: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 
Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the decision-making body for the Project, the 
DAB has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 

Item B - 3 of 28



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-049 
February 5, 2018 
 
 

Page 4 

and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the NC (Neighborhood 
Commercial) land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) 
zoning district. The development standards and conditions under which the proposed Project will be 
constructed and maintained are consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy 
Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed addition, 
façade improvements, landscaping, parking, and trash enclosure will greatly enhance an already developed 
site with an existing gas station, and provide an added benefit to its customers, facility neighbors, and 
passers-by alike. Therefore, the project is consistent with the goals and policies of the Policy Plan (General 
Plan); and 
 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to 
location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified 
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has been 
designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the CN 
(Neighborhood Commercial) zoning district, including standards relative to the particular land use proposed 
(gas station), as-well-as building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, number of off-
street parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, and fences, walls and obstructions. The 
existing site currently has very limited landscaping. Proposed improvements to the site include landscape 
planters and shade trees along the property lines, which will help to provide a buffer between the site and 
adjacent properties. Further, the proposed improvements will help to bring the property into compliance 
with current Development Code standards; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of 
existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to protect 
the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. The 
Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, 
which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Development Code are maintained; [ii] 
the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the project will not result in any 
significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony with the area in which it is located; and 
[v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council Priorities and Policy Plan components 
of The Ontario Plan, and the Neighborhood Commercial zoning district. The proposed project will enhance 
the project site and surrounding area by providing additional landscaping on the project site, landscaping 
planters along the Fourth Street and Grove Avenue frontages, and façade improvements to the existing 
convenience store; and 
 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and 
design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned unit 
development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development 
standards and guidelines of the Development Code that are applicable to the proposed Project, including 
building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and loading 
spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site landscaping, and fences 
and walls, as-well-as those development standards and guidelines specifically related to the particular land 

Item B - 4 of 28



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-049 
February 5, 2018 
 
 

Page 5 

use being proposed (gas station). The proposed project will bring the existing development into compliance 
with current Development Code standards in terms of the above-listed items. As a result of this review, the 
Development Advisory Board has determined that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the 
conditions of approval, will be consistent with the development standards and guidelines described in the 
Development Code. 
 

SECTION 5: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the DAB hereby APPROVES the Application subject to each and 
every condition set forth in the Department reports included as Attachment A of this Decision, and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of February, 2018. 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item B - 5 of 28



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-049 
February 5, 2018 
 
 

Page 6 

Exhibit A—AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH 
 

 

Item B - 6 of 28



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-049 
February 5, 2018 
 
 

Page 7 

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN 
 

  

Item B - 7 of 28



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-049 
February 5, 2018 
 
 

Page 8 

Exhibit C—ELEVATIONS 
 

 
*NOTE: The roof-access ladder on the east elevation has been relocated inside the building. 

Item B - 8 of 28



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-049 
February 5, 2018 
 
 

Page 9 

Exhibit D—COLORS AND MATERIALS 
 

 

Item B - 9 of 28



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-049 
February 5, 2018 
 
 

Page 10 

Exhibit E—SITE PHOTOGRAPHS 
 

 
View looking northwest of storage unit (to be removed and replaced with 

landscaping) 

 
View looking northwest of existing trash enclosure (to be relocated and 

updated) 

Item B - 10 of 28



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-049 
February 5, 2018 
 
 

Page 11 

 
View looking northeast (area to be re-striped and landscaped) 

 
View looking south from northeast corner of site 

 
View looking north of small landscape area at the southeast corner of the site  

View looking north along the west property line (future landscape buffer) 

Item B - 11 of 28



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-049 
February 5, 2018 
 
 

Page 12 

 
Southwest elevation: garage bay doors, cabinet sign to be removed 

 

 
  

Item B - 12 of 28



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-049 
February 5, 2018 
 
 

Page 13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 

Item B - 13 of 28



Item B - 14 of 28



Item B - 15 of 28



Item B - 16 of 28



Item B - 17 of 28



Item B - 18 of 28



Item B - 19 of 28



Item B - 20 of 28



Item B - 21 of 28



Item B - 22 of 28



Item B - 23 of 28



Item B - 24 of 28



Item B - 25 of 28



Item B - 26 of 28



Item B - 27 of 28



Item B - 28 of 28


	AGENDA
	February 5, 2018
	Hassan Haghani, Development Director
	John P. Andrews, Economic Development Director
	Fire Marshal Paul Ehrman, Fire Department

	20180205_Item A-Minutes.pdf
	BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT
	BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT
	STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
	PUBLIC COMMENTS
	CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS




